
 

Page 1 of 4 

Indianapolis Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 21, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 

Online / Phone 

Committee Members Present 

Andrew Klinger – Town of Plainfield Inez Evans - IndyGo 

Jason Taylor – City of Fishers Dennis Buckley – City of Beech Grove 

David Borden* – City of Indianapolis  

 * = Proxy 

 

Committee Members Absent 

Mark Heirbrandt – Hamilton County Eric Wathen – Hendricks County 

Andy Cook – City of Westfield Brian Jessen – Town of Brownsburg 

Dan Parker – City of Indianapolis  

 

 

Others Present 

Anna Gremling – Indianapolis MPO Sean Northup – Indianapolis MPO 

Nick Badman – Indianapolis MPO Cole Jackson – Indianapolis MPO  

Rose Scovel - Indianapolis MPO Steve Cunningham – Indianapolis MPO 

Annie Dixon – Indianapolis MPO Jennifer Higginbotham – Indianapolis MPO 

Shawn Babst – Town of Brownsburg Ryan Wilhite - IndyGo 

Robert  Dirks - FHWA Kristyn Sanchez – Indianapolis MPO 

 

 

1. WELCOME 

Andrew Klinger called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. and turned the meeting over to Anna Gremling. Gremling then 

took roll call attendance. 

ITEMS FOR APPROVAL 

2. MINUTES FOR MARCH 26TH, 2021 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Anna Gremling asked if there were any changes to the proposed minutes. There were none. 

Member Result  Member Result 

Indianapolis Abstain  Plainfield Approve 

IndyGo Approve  Beech Grove Approve 

Fishers Approve    

 

 

 

Jason Taylor moved to approve the March 26th Executive Committee minutes. 

Dennis Buckley seconded the motion. A roll call vote was conducted. 

The March 26, 2021 Executive Committee Minutes were approved. 
MOTION PASSES. 



 

Page 2 of 4 

3. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

Sean Northup gave an overview of the monthly financial report and stated that all Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 

local matches have been paid for this year. Ryan Wilhite questioned the income statements compared to cash flows and 

asked if there were any surprises in the report. Northup stated there were no surprises but the complete response to the UPWP 

local match requirements was better than expected and better than previous years. Anna Gremling stated going forward the 

IMPO will ask the Executive Board to accept the financial report at each meeting. Gremling continued informing the board 

the IMPO is working through its first audit and the board will be updated throughout the process.  

Member Result  Member Result 

Indianapolis Approve  Plainfield Approve 

IndyGo Approve  Beech Grove Approve 

Fishers Approve    

 

 
 

4. EMERGENCY MEETING POLICY 

Anna Gremling stated the IMPO has written an emergency meeting policy and reminded the Committee that the upcoming 

joint Transportation Technical and Policy Committee meeting will be held in-person at Ivy Tech. Annie Dixon introduced 

the IMPO’s Emergency Meeting Policy and stated there may be changes to the policy due to updated guidance from local, 

State, or Federal officials. Dixon continued stating the Executive Committee will approve any potential amendments to the 

policy. Dixon informed the Committee that the updated emergency procedures are in response to State legislation and 

Committee members will be asked to attend meetings in-person unless there is an emergency. Dixon stated in the near future 

Committee members will be asked to wear face masks, meetings will still be streamed over YouTube, and some presentations 

will be given virtually to reduce the number of people in meeting rooms. Andrew Klinger questioned how the policies will 

separate Covid-19 related procedures from other emergencies. Dixon responded language in the policy is intentionally broad 

so that it will cover other types of disasters. Ryan Wilhite questioned how the IMPO will respond to language in the State 

legislation that permits a certain percentage of Committee members to attend remotely. Anna Gremling responded they hope 

all Committee members will meet in-person to reduce logistical issues. Jason Taylor questioned if there will be amendments 

to the policy as Covid-19 is better managed and Dixon responded amendments were possible if there is updated guidance 

from officials in relation to Covid-19. Klinger stated he would like to see those amendments approximately within the next 

six months and Gremling responded stating the IMPO will work to separate covid-19 policies from emergency policies as 

things progress.  

Member Result  Member Result 

Indianapolis Approve  Plainfield Approve 

IndyGo Approve  Beech Grove Approve 

Fishers Approve    

 

 
 

 

Inez Evans moved to accept the financial report.  

David Borden seconded the motion. A roll call vote was conducted. 

The financial report was accepted. 
MOTION PASSES. 

Jason Taylor moved to adopt the Emergency Meeting Policy  

Inez Evans seconded the motion. A roll call vote was conducted. 

The Emergency Meeting Policy was adopted.  
MOTION PASSES. 



 

Page 3 of 4 

5. IMPO HR MANUAL UPDATES (RES. 2021-EXEC-013) 

Anna Gremling stated the IMPO Human Resources (HR) manual was last updated when the IMPO separated from the 

City of Indianapolis. Gremling continued stating since that time many changes have occurred due to the pandemic. 

Gremling stated the IMPO is proposing updates to the HR manual including updated core work hours to better 

accommodate school pick-up and drop-off, a remote work policy permitting employees to work up to two days per week 

remotely, and some small corrections or clarifications. Jason Taylor asked about internal staff feedback to these proposals 

and Gremling responded stating staff feedback was positive. Taylor asks if there will be changes to office leasing and 

Gremling responded the IMPO will stay in its current location for at least the next year and has renewed its lease through 

the end of 2022. Ryan Wilhite asked when the previous lease expired and Gremling responded the lease would have 

expired at the end of 2021. Jason Taylor stated they like the flexibility provided by the policy and questioned if staff had 

adequate supplies to work efficiently remotely. Gremling responded that staff was well equipped and will be using 

Microsoft Teams to collaborate while remote. Gremling stated they hope these efforts will benefit staff retention.  

 

Member Result  Member Result 

Indianapolis Approve  Plainfield Approve 

IndyGo Approve  Beech Grove Approve 

Fishers Approve    

 

 
 

 

 

STATUS REPORTS 

6. UPWP MEMBERSHIP DUES 

Sean Northup stated the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Federal funding requires a local match of 20% and 

that match requirement is distributed to IMPO member communities by population. Northup continued stating the 

local match requirement for this year is $582,000 which is similar to most years though significantly less than 2020-21 

where the match was over $700,000. The higher cost for those years was due to data modeling funding needs. Andrew 

Klinger asks when the distribution will be based on the updated 2020 Census data and Gremling responds that she 

expects the updated Census data will be incorporated next year.  Klinger asks if the IMPO could provide a match 

requirement estimate based on the 2019 Census estimates and Gremling responded this was possible. 

7. Long-Range Transportation Plan Amendment #7 

Jen Higginbotham stated Amendment #7 to the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) includes one project which is 

an interchange modification at I-495 and I-69 but also includes the Madison County Council of Government (MCCOG) 

TIP adoption. Higginbotham asked for questions and, hearing none, stated that there could be another amendment for 

the August meeting.  

8. Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 (CRSSA Funding) 

Anna Gremling stated the IMPO will receive approximately $14 million in federal funds through the Coronavirus 

Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act of 2021 (CRSSA). Gremling stated the IMPO would like to use 

the funds for projects already scheduled in the TIP to move those projects more quickly, provide relief for an 

overprogrammed fiscal year, and clean up the projects list in preparation for the upcoming call for projects under the 

federal exchange program. Gremling stated the staff will present a proposal to use these funds in this manner to the 

Transportation Technical and Policy Committees. Steve Cunningham stated the use of the funds in this manner is in 

line with INDOT guidance. Jason Taylor stated that with increased construction costs, inflation, and other factors that 

the funds may not enable many projects. Andrew Klinger agreed expressing concern that much of the funding will be 

Jason Taylor made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-EXEC-013 concerning the Human Resources Manual  

David Borden seconded the motion. A roll call vote was conducted. 

Resolution 2021-EXEC-013 was approved. 
MOTION PASSES. 



 

Page 4 of 4 

used by cost increase requests. Ryan Wilhite questioned if cost increase requests using these funds will go through the 

IMPO’s regular cost increase process and questions if the intent is to move new projects or to accommodate cost 

increases. Cunningham responded stating the priority is to move new projects but increases are an option. Kristyn 

Sanchez stated cost increases are often the responsibility of that LPA and Wilhite agreed expressing the desire to move 

more projects rather than fund cost increases.  

9. Executive Director’s Update 

Gremling stated the Federal Exchange Program guidebook will likely go out to the program’s steering committee today. 

Gremling continued stating American Structurepoint will provide highlights at the June 2 joint Transportation Technical 

and Policy Committees. Gremling stated the LRTP performance measures will also be discussed at that meeting. Rose 

Scovel stated regional economic development initiatives continue and Gremling stated the Regional Economic 

Acceleration and Development Initiative (READI) program is moving forward. Gremling continued stating some 

counties may choose to submit READI applications as smaller subregions instead of applying as the entire central Indiana 

region due to the $50 million award cap. Scovel stated the Indiana Economic Development Corporation is pushing back 

against sub-regional applications and the IMPO is willing to help in these programs wherever possible.  

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

10. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

No other business was discussed.  

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Anna Gremling asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 
 

Andrew Klinger moved to adjourn the May 21, 2021 Executive Committee meeting. 

Jason Taylor seconded the motion. 

The May 21 Executive Committee meeting was adjourned 
MOTION PASSES. 


